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Date: November 6, 2018 
 

To: Honorable Mayor & Members of the City Council 
 

From: Public Works Department 
 

Presentation by: Diana Langley, Public Works Director 
 
 

Summary 
 

Subject: Purchase of Two (2) Backup Generator Systems for the Corporation Yard 
(Hazard Mitigation Grant Program) 

 

Recommendation: Award the purchase of two (2) Kohler emergency generator systems to Bay 
City Electric Works of Poway, CA in the total amount of $108,645.32, with the 
finding that it is in the best interest of the City. 

  

Fiscal Impact: $108,645.32 – CIP Account No. 901028-65518 (Improvements to Buildings 
and Grounds). Funding is provided by the Cal OES Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program. 

 
 

Purpose: 
 

To equip and upgrade the City’s critical facilities for improved emergency preparedness. 
 

Background: 
 

The City’s Corporation Yard is a critical facility for coordination and deployment of routine and 
emergency repair services. Divisions located at the Corporation Yard include Water Distribution, 
Wastewater Collection, Street Maintenance, Facilities Maintenance, Fleet Maintenance, and Parks 
Maintenance. The installation of backup power improves the City’s ability to respond in the event of 
an electrical power failure. Not only will this impact Public Works and Community Services functions, 
but it also will positively impact Police and Fire operations, as the Fleet Maintenance Division 
provides maintenance support to Police and Fire vehicles.  
 
As a result of the presidential disaster declaration for the January and February 2017 storm events, 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) funds are available through the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). The HMGP funds mitigation activities that have the potential to 
reduce or eliminate future damages due to natural disasters. In California, these funds are 
administered by the California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES). 
 
In September 2017, the City submitted an application for the HMGP for the installation of two 
backup generators at the Corporation Yard. One generator will service the main building and the 
other generator will service the Fleet Maintenance building. The generators will be designed to 
automatically turn on in the event of a power failure and will contain enough fuel to operate for up to 
48 hours. 
On July 17, 2018, Council elected to accept the award of $150,000 in grant funds through the 
HMGP with a $50,000 required City match.  



 
Installation of the generators includes demolition, excavation, and construction of concrete 
generator pads, construction of modified path of travel and bollards, and conduit, wiring, and 
connection to switchgear for each generator location. Once the final design is completed and the 
generators have been acquired, Public Works will conduct an informal bid to select the contractor 
per the Public Contract Code. 
 

Analysis: 
 

The HMGP requires that construction be completed by March 1, 2019. In order to facilitate meeting 
this deadline in a timely manner, Cal OES has recommended that the City move forward with 
obtaining quotes for the generators and transfer switches rather than conducting a formal bid 
process.  
 
Staff reviewed available generator models and requested pricing from the regional suppliers for the 
three manufacturers of the appropriate equipment (Kohler, Holt, and Cummins). Bay City Electric 
Works, the regional representative for Kohler equipment, submitted the lowest price and was also 
the model most preferred by staff. 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

The total cost for the two generator systems is $108,645.32; $65,169.39 for the Corporation Yard 
main building and $43,475.93 for the Fleet Maintenance shop building. The estimate for the total 
project, including both the equipment purchase and the installation/construction is $200,000. 
 

Alternatives: 
 

Direct staff to conduct a formal bid for the generator systems. This would delay the project 
construction and could jeopardize meeting the required deadline. 
 

Recommendation: 
 

Award the purchase of two (2) Kohler emergency generator systems to Bay City Electric Works of 
Poway, CA in the total amount of $108,645.32, with the finding that it is in the best interest of the 
City. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Bay City Electric Works Quote 
 
Prepared by: Submitted by: 
 

/s/ Scarlett Harris  /s/ Steven C. Kroeger 

Scarlett Harris  Steven C. Kroeger 
Administrative Assistant  City Manager 
 
Reviewed by: 
 

Department Head DL 
 

Finance SM 
 

City Attorney TH via email 
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